LAND USE COMMISSION
MINUTES OF MEETING

October 2, 2008

Conference Room 405
Leiopapa A Kamehameha
235 S. Beretania Street
Honolulu, Hawalii

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT: Duane Kanuha, Chair
Vladimir Paul Devens
Lisa Judge
Normand Lezy
Nicholas Teves, Jr.
Reuben Wong

COMMISSIONERS ABSENT: Kyle Chock
Thomas Contrades
Ransom Piltz

STAFF PRESENT: Orlando Davidson, Executive Officer
Diane Erickson, Deputy Attorney General
Bert Saruwatari, Staff Planner
Caroline Lorenzo, Acting Chief Clerk
Holly Hackett, Court Reporter
Wade Kersey, Audio Technician

Chair Kanuha called the meeting to order at 9:23 a.m.
Chair Kanuha noted for the record that Commissioners Chock, Contrades, and Piltz were

absent and excused. The Chair also noted that Commissioner Wong has recused himself from
the first docket item.

ADOPTION OF MINUTES

Commissioner Teves moved to adopt the minutes of September 18, 2008. Vice Chair
Devens seconded the motion. The minutes were unanimously approved by voice vote.

TENTATIVE MEETING SCHEDULE

Executive Officer Davidson reported on the following:



e October 16 and November 6 will tentatively be one day meetings. The revised
TMS will be sent out to the Commissioners shortly.

e The Commission received a Notice of intent to file a 201H petition for Kula
Ridge. If the petition is filed on October 31, 2008, as anticipated, there will be a
45-day approval deadline, and hearings are to be scheduled on Maui. Mr.
Davidson will poll the Commissioners to determine the appropriate 4-days of
hearing for this item.

Chair Kanuha requested the Commissioners to notify staff or the Executive Officer of
any conflicts to the tentative meeting schedule.

DR08-36 Ko Olina Development, LLC (Oahu)

Commissioner Wong recused himself from the meeting on Docket No. DR08-36 Ko
Olina Development, LLC, at this time.

Chair Kanuha stated that this was a continued hearing and action meeting on Docket No.
DRO08-36 Ko Olina Development Co., to consider Ko Olina Development LLC's petition for
declaratory order which was filed on March 24, 2008.

APPEARANCES

Benjamin Matsubara, Esq. represented Petitioner
Wyeth Matsubara, Esq., represented Petitioner

Bryan Yee, Esq., represented State Office of Planning
Abbey Seth Mayer, State Office of Planning

Scott Derrickson, State Office of Planning

PUBLIC WITNESSES

1. Creighton Chang

Mr. Chang provided a brief summary of his written testimony which was distributed to
the Commission. Mr. Chang voiced his concerns and the concerns of the fishermen who
utilized the Ko Olina boat ramp, and looks forward to the reopening of the Ko Olina boat
launch ramp.

Mr. Matsubara asked Mr. Chang if he owned a boat and if he utilized the marina.
Mr. Chang responded in the affirmative. There were no other questions for Mr. Chang.

2. Warren Von Arnswaldt
Mr. Von Arnswaldt stated his concerns about previous testimonies from prior hearings
about the lack of a boat launch facility at Ko Olina. He stated that the Commission’s
decision will set a precedent on future agreements made between the State and private
companies.

There were no questions for Mr. Von Arnswaldt.

Land Use Commission Meeting Minutes - October 2, 2008
Page 2



3. Patti Kahanamoku Teruya

Ms. Teruya stated that she agreed with the two gentlemen before her, and expressed her
concerns regarding the unimproved roads at Kalaeloa, limited public beach access,
inadequate parking spaces, the issue of homeless people, and that the Community does
not want to be forgotten.

There were no questions for Ms. Teruya.
4. Dr. Kioni Dudley

Dr. Dudley stated that he is a member of the Makakilo/Honokowai Hale Neighborhood
Board. Dr. Dudley voiced his concerns for the need for access to the Ko Olina Resort,
and that there is a problem with people being turned away at the security gate. He also
stated his opinion that tourists need to see Hawaiian fishermen. He gave his support
should there be a favorable response to the fisherman’s request.

There were no questions for Dr. Dudley.

Chair Kanuha noted that during deliberations, the Commission will not entertain
additional input from the parties or the public unless called upon, and that comments should be
limited to the matters asked.

The Commissioners present indicated that they have all received and reviewed the
transcripts and other materials on the docket and were prepared to deliberate on the docket.

Before deliberations, Chair Kanuha asked the parties for their closing arguments and
requested that they be limited to 5 minutes each.

Mr. Matsubara provided Ko Olina’s closing argument. Mr. Matsubara went over the
main points of Ko Olina’s proposed Decision and Order and argued that because of proposed
improvements to the Kalaeloa boat launch facility and the City approval of the Public Access
Management Plan ("PAMP"), the Petitioner is in substantial compliance with its representations
to the Commission and the current Decision and Order.

Mr. Yee provided the Commission with the State’s closing argument. Mr. Yee indicated
that the Office of Planning’s position is that the Petitioner has not complied with its
representations; however, there was no malice on the part of Ko Olina, merely a mistake. He
also indicated that OP hopes the Commission’s decision would be toward resolving this dispute.
He also suggested a six months status report from the Petitioner.

The Commission went into recess at 9:56 a.m. The meeting reconvened at 10:01 a.m.

FORMAL DELIBERATIONS

Executive Officer Davidson went over the Proposed Findings of Fact, Conclusions of
Law, and Decision and Order with the Commissioners.

Land Use Commission Meeting Minutes - October 2, 2008
Page 3



Commissioner Lezy posed a question on what constitutes “accessories,” as indicated in
the first paragraph of the Proposed Order. He also suggested that the word “public” needed to be
clarified relative to the term "boat launch ramp."

Commissioner Judge made a motion to delete the word “public” in the first sentence of
paragraphs 2 and 3 of the Order before the words boat launch ramp and to add the phrase “open
to public” in paragraph 2. Commissioner Lezy seconded the motion.

Commissioner Lezy requested that a friendly amendment be made to delete the word
“public” in the first sentence in paragraph 1, and to also remove the reference made to
*accessories” in paragraph 2 of the Order.

Commissioner Judge accepted the friendly amendment.

Vice Chair Devens requested that a new finding of fact be added stating that "Although
there have been objections and concerns raised by the public regarding the location and condition
of the alternative boat launch ramp, the Petitioner made good faith efforts to address the public’s
concerns, and to act in compliance with the Decision and Order and its amendments."

Commissioner Judge accepted Vice Chair Devens’ amendment. There was then a vote to
adopt the amendments offered by Commissioners Judge, Lezy, and Devens. The Commission
was polled as follows:

Ayes: Commissioners Judge, Lezy, Devens, Teves, and Kanuha. The motion passed
with 5 yes, 1 recused, and 3 absent.

In discussion, Commissioner Lezy stated that he supported the Proposed Order as
currently framed. He also stated that the public had strong issues about this item, and was
concerned that this case has generated recent discussions in connection with pending docket
matters being in compliance with representations and enforcement of conditions. He posed a
question, “How do we enforce compliance with conditions?”

Commissioner Judge concurred with Commissioner Lezy’s concerns. She also stated that
she supported the Proposed Order to re-establish the boat launch ramp back into the Marina.

Commissioner Judge moved to approve the Proposed Order as amended. Commissioner
Lezy seconded the motion. The Commission was polled as follows:

Ayes: Commissioners Judge, Lezy, Devens, Teves, and Kanuha.
The motion passed with 5 yes, with 1 recused and 3 absent.

The Commission went into recess at 10:33 a.m. The meeting reconvened at 10:46 a.m.

At this time, Commissioner Wong entered the proceedings.

Land Use Commission Meeting Minutes - October 2, 2008
Page 4



SP73-147 PACIFIC CONCRETE & ROCK CO., LTD. (OAHU)

Chair Kanuha stated that this was an action meeting on Docket No. SP73-147 Pacific
Concrete & Rock Co., Ltd. to consider an amendment to the special use permit to (1) extend the
life of the Makakilo Quarry resource extraction and aggregate processing operations to the year
2032; and (2) expand the resource extraction and buffer areas of the Makakilo Quarry located
within the State Land Use Agricultural District at Puu Makakilo, Ewa, Oahu, Hawaii.

APPEARANCES

Douglas Ing, Esg., represented Petitioner

Robert M. Creps, Grace Pacific Corporation

David Hulihee, Grace Pacific Corporation

Raymond Young, City and County of Honolulu, Department of Planning and Permitting
Bryan Yee, Esq., represented State Office of Planning

Abbey Seth Mayer, State Office of Planning

Abe Mitsuda, State Office of Planning

PUBLIC WITNESSES

1. Sharie Swatek
Ms. Swatek provided a brief summary of her written testimony which she submitted to
the Commission. She expressed strong concerns regarding public health issues and the
negative quality of life at Kapolei because of the quarry, and suggested the need for a
study that examines the toxic levels in Kapolei.
There were no questions for Ms. Swatek.

2. Michael Swatek

Mr. Swatek stated that he opposed approval of the petition, and expressed concerns
regarding the impact of the quarry on the health and safety of the community.

There were no questions for Mr. Swatek.
3. Kurt Fevella

Mr. Fevella stated that he lived in Ewa Beach and was in favor of the expansion of the
special permit, and did not believe there were any negative impacts from the quarry.

There were no questions for Mr. Fevella.

4. Patti Kahanamoku Teruya
Ms. Teruya expressed her support to Grace Pacific Corporation (GPC) for the expansion
of the Makakilo Quarry. She indicated that GPC has supported keiki programs and

scholarships in the past.

There were no questions for Ms. Teruya.

Land Use Commission Meeting Minutes - October 2, 2008
Page 5



5. Warren Wegesend
Mr. Wegesend stated that he was the General Manager of the Villages of Kapolei
Association (VOKA) and was present on behalf of Mr. Petersen, president of the VOKA.
Mr. Wegesend stated that he appreciated the efforts of GPC in working with the VOKA.
In May of 2008, VOKA voted to remove its objections to this SUP. Unfortunately, due
to an oversight of the applicant in informing the VOKA of the intention to reinstall the
asphalt plant in the upper quarry, the VOKA is now opposed to building a new asphalt
plant in the upper quarry.
There were no questions for Mr. Wegesend.

6. William “Buzz” Hong

Mr. Hong stated that he supported the favorable consideration of the expansion of the
Makakilo Quarry.

There were no questions for Mr. Hong.

7. Dr. Kioni Dudley
Dr. Dudley expressed his support for the development of the project. His concerns were
of the visual impacts of the quarry from the freeway, and what would happen should the
GPC be bought by another entity.
There were no questions for Dr. Dudley.

Mr. Yee stated that the Office of Planning supported approval of this request.

STAFF REPORT

Mr. Bert Saruwatari provided a map orientation of the petition area referencing Exhibit
36, a map prepared by the Department of Planning and Permitting. He also stated a correction to
page 10 of the staff report with reference to zoning. He indicated that the processing site is
zoned AG-1. There were no questions by the Commission or the parties.

PETITIONER’S PRESENTATION

Mr. Lee Sichter provided the Commission with an overview of the planning process. He
referenced Exhibit 36, the map prepared by the Department of Planning and Permitting. He
stated that the Makakilo Neighborhood Board has expressed concerns regarding the visual
impacts of the project. He also stated that there have been significant and substantial changes in
what was originally envisioned. A second hot mix asphalt plant will be relocated, and the
intention is to remove the facilities further away from the existing community.

There were no questions by the Commissioners.

Mr. Ing referenced the staff report and addressed issues raised by staff.

Land Use Commission Meeting Minutes - October 2, 2008
Page 6



Mr. Ing then requested several amendments to the Planning Commission's conditions.

Mr. Ing indicated that the tunnel will be closed in 2012, but will be a need to access the
tunnel to run utilities lines through the tunnel. Mr. Ing also indicated the need to extend the
hours of operation of the hot mix asphalt plant from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. for the purpose of
maintenance of equipment.

CITY & COUNTY OF HONOLULU’S PRESENTATION

Mr. Raymond Young of the Department of Planning and Permitting made their
presentation. He stated that the Planning Commission went along with the recommendations
contained in the Department of Planning and Permitting’s staff report on this matter.

The Commission went into recess at 12:00 p.m. The meeting reconvened at 1:20 p.m.
At this time, Commissioner Wong was not present at the proceedings.

Executive Officer Davidson went over with the Commission the Planning Commission’s
imposed 14 conditions of approval, and stated that staff recommended modifying several
conditions and adding Condition #15 and #16.

Vice Chair Devens posed a question to the City and County of Honolulu (C&C) if they
objected to the two extra hours of operation for maintaining equipment. Mr. Young indicated
that he personally doesn’t have a problem with it what was presented to and approved by the
county Planning Commission was based on direction from the Director of DPP.

Vice Chair Devens moved to go into executive session to consult with the Commission’s
attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the Commission’s powers, duties, privileges,
immunities, and liabilities. Commissioner Teves seconded the motion. Commissioner Judge
then asked the C&C a question regarding landscape material production. Mr. Young responded
that the issue was brought up in writing during the planning commission but was not specifically
raised.

The Commission exited the meeting at 1:27 p.m. and entered executive session
immediately thereafter.

The meeting reconvened at 1:54 p.m. At this time, Commissioner Wong entered the
proceedings.

Mr. Ing addressed Commissioner Judge’s question regarding landscape material
production. He referenced Exhibit 33, which is part of the entire record.

Commissioner Wong asked if the letter was considered by the Planning Commission.
Mr. Young responded that it wasn’t specifically brought up at the Planning Commission.

Commissioner Wong asked if the Planning Commission had fully discussed the duration
of the extension, should it be 5 years, 10 years, or 24 years. Mr. Young responded that
Commissioner Dawson of the Planning Commission proposed that term to be set for 10 years,
but that part of the motion was withdrawn.

Land Use Commission Meeting Minutes - October 2, 2008
Page 7



Commissioner Wong asked about the new asphalt plant to be built at Campbell Industrial
Park, and if the Planning Commission had discussions on the new asphalt plant. Mr. Young
responded that he doesn’t recall a discussion at the Planning Commission on this subject.

Commissioner Wong indicated that staff recommended Condition #15 as to the uses and
limits of the excavation area, and that staff recommended Condition #16 that the applicant shall
establish the quarry expansion in substantial compliance with its representations made to the
Commission, and that failure to do so may result in the revocation of the permit. Commissioner
Wong then asked if applicant and county agreed to these conditions.

Mr. Ing indicated that the petitioner is in agreement. Mr. Young stated the County had
no objections.

Commissioner Wong moved that the Commission approve the recommendation of the
Planning Commission which encompasses 14 conditions, together with Conditions 15 and 16 as
recommended by staff. Commissioner Teves seconded the motion.

Commissioner Wong then reiterated that the use of the hot mix asphalt plant after 6
o’clock, the use of the landscape material production, and the use of the tunnel for utility lines
should be matters resolved at the County level.

Chair Kanuha and Executive Officer Davidson added that the Staff Report recommended
modifications to the Planning Commission’s Conditions 1, 4, 9, 11, and 12 for purposes of
clarity. Commissioner Wong again so moved with friendly amendments. Commissioner Teves
again seconded the motion. The Commission was polled as follows:

Ayes: Commissioners Wong, Teves, Devens, Judge, Lezy, and Kanuha

The motion passed with 6 ayes and 3 absent.

The Commission went into recess at 2:13 p.m. The meeting reconvened at 2:22 p.m.

At this time, Vice Chair Devens recused himself from the next docket item.

A85-595 KUILIMA DEVELOPMENT CO. (OAHU)

Chair Kanuha stated that this was a meeting on Docket No. A85-595 Kuilima
Development Co., to receive status report from Petitioner and take appropriate action, if any.

APPEARANCES

Terry O’Toole, Esq., represented Petitioner

Sharon Lovejoy, Esq., represented Petitioner

Bryan Yee, Esq., represented State Office of Planning
Abbey Seth Mayer, State Office of Planning

Abe Mitsuda, State Office of Planning

Land Use Commission Meeting Minutes - October 2, 2008
Page 8



PUBLIC WITNESSES

1.

Robert Harris

Mr. Harris provided a brief summary of his written testimony which he submitted to the
Commission. He requested that the Commission approve a show cause order based upon
Kuilima’s failure to develop the property in accordance with the conditions of approval.

There were no questions for Mr. Harris.
Reverend Bob Nakata, Defend Oahu Coalition

Reverend Nakata stated that he was the co-chair of the Defend Oahu Coalition. He also
summarized his written testimony which he submitted to the Commission. He voiced his
concerns that the representations made by the petitioner regarding jobs, housing, parks,
and community benefits have not been fulfilled, and also that the treatment of native
Hawaiian burial sites and cultural sites was another area of concern. He recommended
that the Commission approve a motion for an order to show cause.

There were no questions for Reverend Nakata.

Peter Cole

Mr. Cole stated that he represented the Surfrider Foundation. He recommended that the
Commission reclassify the land back to Agricultural. He voiced his concerns regarding
the lack of public access to the beaches and the lack of adequate parking.

There were no questions for Mr. Cole.

Mark Manley

Mr. Manley stated that he has been living in the Haleiwa area since 1958, and was a
commercial fisherman where he fishes between the areas of Haleiwa and Kahuku. He
indicated that he has seen progress in the area, but strongly believes that the land should
be returned to Agricultural.

There were no questions for Mr. Manley.

Ken Fonoimoana

Mr. Fonoimoana expressed his concerns about the petition area regarding cultural issues,
promises made with regard to providing workforce housing and low and moderate
income housing units, and parks that were never built. He also voiced the need for jobs

and economic benefits.

Chair Kanuha asked Mr. Fonoimoana what the 236 acres was being used for now. Mr.
Fonoimoana responded that part of it is a golf course.

Land Use Commission Meeting Minutes - October 2, 2008

Page 9



6. Mrs. Benjamin Kahanui

A representative of Mrs. Kahanui attended on behalf of Mrs. Kahanui and read her
written testimony. Mrs. Kahanui’s concerns were that of rising property taxes when there
is more development, and to keep the country country.
There were no questions for this witness.
The Commission went into recess at 3:03 p.m. The meeting reconvened at 3:14 p.m.
Commissioner Wong moved to enter into executive session to consult with the board’s

attorney on questions and issues pertaining to the board’s powers, duties, privileges, immunities,

and liabilities. Commissioner Teves seconded the motion.

The Commission exited from the regular meeting at 3:14 p.m. The meeting reconvened
at 3:25 p.m.

PETITIONER’S PRESENTATION

Mr. O’Toole provided Kuilima's status report to the Commission. He addressed
comments and concerns made by the public witnesses in regards to no parks, no beach, no
access. He also provided a status on the nine conditions.

Mr. O’Toole indicated that of the nine conditions in the Decision and Order, five of the
nine have been substantially completed or are done. Two of the remaining four are in progress
and are underway. The other two are related to the development of the hotels and low and
moderate income housing. Mr. O’Toole stated the following:

Completed

e Condition 4 — required the developer to develop additional water resources. Completed
between 1989 and 1991. Apana wells 1 and 2 were completed in 1991, and are in the
process of being dedicate and put into service. Also completed were water infrastructure,
service lines and laterals in the design of all highway and roadway improvements for the
Project. He also indicated that the excess capacity that will come from the wells will
provide additional water to the North Shore Community.

e Condition 5 — improve the marsh. Completed and currently ongoing maintenance and
monitoring.

e Condition 6 — archaeological studies. Submitted the archaeological investigation report
in March 2003. Melanie Chinen of the State Historic Preservation Division at the time
issued a March 11, 2005 letter acknowledging receipt of the report and confirmed the
report satisfied the requirements of the mitigation plan.

e Condition 8 — develop, operate private sewage treatment plant. Completed in 1990. In
2007, the resort created a public utility to operate and manage it.

e Condition 9 — Monitoring program for coastal resources. Completed and ongoing since
1999. In 2007, DLNR accepted the monitoring program, and the Department of Health
accepted the water quality sampling program.

Land Use Commission Meeting Minutes - October 2, 2008
Page 10



In progress
e Condition 3 — Fund and design and construction of improvements to Kamehameha

Highway. There have been traffic studies. There are current discussions going on
between Stanford Carr and his team, on behalf of Kuilima, and the Department of
Transportation about what needs to be done.

e Condition 7 — Public access to parks and shoreline. There are 40 parking stalls at the
hotel, as well as beach access. There will be a 100-foot public access. Park P1 has been
subdivided. There have also been discussions with the State regarding a state-initiated
redesign of a bridge nearby.

e Condition regarding hotels. Working on subdivision approval.

e Condition regarding low, moderate incoming housing. Tied to hotel development. The
rest of the development needs to be in order to have the housing come on line.

In response to questions, Mr. Stanford Carr, Stanford Carr Development, the project’s
current development manager, provided a status report on the Kuilima Resort improvements,
including roadways, parks, and subdivision approvals.

Commissioner Wong expressed his concern about the lack of progress.

Mr. Carr stated that petitioner is engaged with the community, and that the project
improvements are moving forward. He also stated that they are waiting for subdivision approval
to complete other improvements.

Commissioner Judge asked when the Department of Transportation will resolve issues.
Mr. Carr responded that the developer received a September 17, 2008 letter from Brennon
Morioka of the Department of Transportation requesting a roundabout analysis in lieu of left-
hand turn lanes along Kamehameha Highway and Kuilima Drive. He also responded that they
are still gathering information on the analytical requirements of the roundabout study.

Mr. Yee indicated that the Office of Planning is looking for a timeline of future
development from the Petitioner, which is missing from the current status report, and requested
this information be included in Petitioner's next status report.

Commissioner Judge excused herself from the proceedings at 4:00 p.m.

Due to lack of quorum, Chair Kanuha stated that this item will be continued on the
November 6, 2008 meeting on Oahu.

The meeting was adjourned at 4:00 p.m.

(Please refer to the LUC Transcript of October 2, 2008 for more details on this matter.)

Land Use Commission Meeting Minutes - October 2, 2008
Page 11



